1987

Michael R. Barker v. Laura Beth McGillivray, and
the State of Utah, by and through Utah Dept. of
Social Services David L Wilkenson, Utah Attorney
General Ross C. Blackham, SanPete County
Attorney Utah Dept. of Seocial Servics John Abbot,
director Raleen Olsen Office of Recovery Services
Utah Department of Social Services, Inc. Wayne
Riches, Attorney Clella Lawrence, Attorney
Howard Maetani, Attorney. Brief of Appellant



Part of the [Law Commons](#)

Utah Court of Appeals

Original Brief Submitted to the Utah Court of Appeals; digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah; machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

JURISDICTION OF THE COURT

Appellant, Michael R. Barker, hereinafter referred to as Defendant, is a free, white, citizen (de jure) of the State of Washington, County of Washington, based upon the Preamble and the Bill of Rights to the U.S. Constitution and as such, the Appeals Court has the jurisdiction over the subject matter to secure as to protect the rights of Appellant/Defendant. Respondants/Co-Plaintiffs are U.S. Citizens who reside in the State of Utah.

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

POINT 1. SOVEREIGN STATUS

Is a free, white sovereign citizen (de jure) of the State of Utah entitled to protection of Organic Constitutional rights based on the Preamble and the Bill of Rights to the U.S. Constitution; especially when the court has taken Judicial Notice of that status?

POINT 2. VALIDITY OF FOREIGN DIVORCE DECREE

Can a foreign divorce decree be estopped when the sole purpose is financial gain to the harm of another?

POINT 3. DOMICILE

Is it not arbitrary for a Judge to rule, without any evidence or facts, that a person did not fulfill divorce domicile requirements of a foreign country; when the law states that the burden of proof rests with the opposing party?

POINT 4. NON-OBLIGOR STATUS

Is it not illegal, or at least an abuse of discretion, for a Judge to rule that a person is an "obligor" as defined by U.C.A. Section 78-45-2, as amended, when that person has proven on the administrative record that he is not; and furthermore, to do so when that person is not allowed by the court to ask questions pertaining to his defense at the trial?

POINT 5 . VIOLATION OF PRIVACY

Is it not unlawful, or both unlawful and illegal, or an abuse of process, or malicious prosecution, and against the intention of the Utah Legislature, and a violation of a sovereign state citizen's right to privacy, for the Utah Department of Social Services to operate outside of U.C.A. Section 78-45b-5, as amended to obtain private financial information about that person?

POINT 6. PARTIES ACTING ON DIVORCE DECREE WITH CONSIDERATION

Is it not arbitrary and an abuse of discretion for the court to rule that a foreign divorce decree is invalid because it was an agreement between parties to mutually divorce when the evidence and the facts show otherwise?

POINT 7. COURT NOT SET PROPERLY

Is it not a violation of the doctrine of Utah's separation of powers Article 5, Section 1, and a violation of basic U.S.

Constitutional rights, for a court to rule on the validity of a foreign divorce and the subsequent rescission of a Utah State marriage license when the judge has acted ministerially for the Utah Department of Social Services, and the Judge is at the same time acting Judicially to dissolve a Utah marriage which was administered by the Executive Department?

Is it not, furthermore, appropriate for the District Court to hear the rescission of the marriage license issue rather than refuse to hear it because it is not "proper"?

POINT 8. VIOLATION OF TRIAL BY JURY

Is it not a violation of a persons right to trial by jury for a Judge to refuse repeated demands for that right based on Article 1, Section 10, of the Utah Constitution, and for a judge to refuse a tendered jury fee?

POINT 9. RIGHT TO COUNSEL VIOLATED -- ABSURDITY

Is it not a violation of the right to due process of law for a judge to grant the right to counsel at a pre-trial hearing and then at the time of trial deny that right? Is that logic, furthermore, not devoid of reason and therefore absurd; and is it not reasonable that counsel and court cost suffered by a person in that circumstance should be awarded?

POINT 10. RIGHTS SUA SPONTE DENIED

Is it not a violation of a person's basic Constitutional right to have his rights sustained by a judge, and for the judge to inform a person when basic rights may be in jeopardy instead of a judge attempting to violate that person's rights?

POINT 11. DEFENDANT THREATENED WITH INCARCERATION

Is it not a violation of a person's Constitutional right for a judge to threaten a person with incarceration if he does not answer questions pertaining to his financial status which have already been answered pursuant to the Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution?

POINT 12. VIOLATION OF RIGHT TO DEFEND--JOINDER

Is it not a violation of a person's right to defend for the court to refuse to hear issues for which summons have been issued and parties have appeared in court; and further, after the Judge does allow summoned parties to take the stand is it not a violation of a person's right to due process, and right to defend to not allow questions pertinent to the defense to be asked?

POINT 13. INVASION OF PRIVACY

Is it not a violation of a person's right to defend for the court to not allow a person to ask questions pertaining to what

statute, law or authority allows them to harm another?

POINT 14. JUDGE GIVES LEGAL ADVISE

Is it not a violation of a person's right to due process for a judge to give the advise for him to obtain a licensed attorney when if that advise were followed it would take away the person's status and place him in the jurisdiction of the court?

POINT 15. CONSPIRACY AND BLACKMAIL

Is not the court a party to conspiracy when after having the evidence to same on the record finds that there is no conspiracy and blackmail?

POINT 16. VIOLATION OF RIGHT TO RELIGION AND SPEECH

Is it not a violation of Article 1, Sections 4, and 15, for the court to deny a person the right to communicate freely to his children concerning the destructive and malicious intentions and behavior of another so as to impart to them a concept of correct principles instead of that which leads to dissolution?

POINT 17. BIAS AND CONSPIRACY OF ATTORNEYS FOR THE STATE

Is it not a violation of a person's right to due process of law for the failure of the County Attorney and the Attorney General to act on a criminal assault complaint and a threat to the person's life?

POINT 18. COURT ATTEMPTS TO FORCE JURISDICTION

Is it not a violation of a persons right to due process of law for the court to order a person to pay child support to a third party when, in fact, no money is due or owing to that third party; and the only reason for so ordering is to bring that person into the court's jurisdiction?

POINT 19. PROPERTY TO A STRANGER TO THE RECORD

Is it not a violation of a persons right to due process of law for the court to rule on disposal of his property when, in fact he is a stranger to the record; and is that ruling therefore not null and void?

POINT 20. PRIOR PROPERTY AGREEMENT

Is it not a well established axiom of law that equity is not available to reinstate rights and privileges voluntarily contracted away simply because a party has come to regret the bargain made, especially when it is to the harm of another?

POINT 21. CUSTODY OF CHILDREN

Did not the court violate U.C.A. Section 30-3-5, as amended, when it awarded custody and visitation rights of children when it had already been made by a foreign divorce decree, since the foreign decree must be given full faith and credit?

POINT 22. VISITATION IS TOO RESTRICTIVE

Did not the court abuse its discretion in ruling for an unnecessarily restrictive child visitation rights for a father when there was a lack of funds and a great distance which caused hardship; and did not the court abuse its discretion since the parties had acted on a prior agreement for visitation rights which was not to the harm of the children or their father?

POINT 23. NO CHANGE OF SUPPORT CIRCUMSTANCES

Did not the court arbitrarily and with abuse of discretion issue new orders for support when, in fact, there was no change in circumstances of either parties to justify that order?

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS

UTAH CODE ANNOTATED (U.C.A.):

U.C.A., 1953, as amended, Section 30-3-5.

U.C.A., 1953, as amended, Section 78-27-50.

Financial information privacy-Act inapplicable to certain official investigations.-Nothing in this act shall apply where an examination of said records is a part of an official investigation by any local police, sheriff, city attorney, county attorney, the attorney general, or the state department of public safety, or the bureau of recovery services, department of social services.

U.C.A., 1953, as amended, Section 78-45-2.

(2) "Obligor" means any person owing a duty of support.

"Support debt" means the debt created by nonpayment of child support under the laws of this state or the decree of any court of appropriate jurisdiction ordering a sum to be paid as child support."

U.C.A., 1953, as amended, Section 78-45b-5.

Notice of support debt-Absent court order-(1) In the absence of a court order, the director may issue a notice of a support debt accrued or accruing based upon the furnishing of support by the department for the benefit of any dependent child. That notice shall include a statement of the support debt accrued or accruing, computable on the basis of the amount of assistance paid or to be paid, a statement of the name of the recipient and the name of the minor child for whom assistance is being provided, a demand for immediate payment of the support debt or in the alternative for a written answer from that person to the department setting forth any claimed defenses to liability, and requesting a hearing thereon, and a statement that if neither answer nor full payment are received within twenty days from the date of service the department may assess and determine that support debt and that, subsequent thereto, the property of that person shall be subject to appropriate collection action including, but not limited to, execution upon liens, wage assignments, attachment, and garnishment. This notice shall be served upon the alleged responsible parent in the manner prescribed for service of notices under section 78-45b-4.

(2) If a written answer is received by the department, a hearing shall be set in the manner provided under section 78-45b-6 and reasonable notice of that hearing shall be forwarded to the alleged responsible parent in the manner prescribed under section 78-45b-4.

(3) If payment is not received as demanded under

subsection (1) and no written answer is filed within twenty days from the date of service, the department may proceed to assess and determine that support debt and, at any time thereafter, may proceed with appropriate collection actions as provided in that subsection.

U.C.A., 1953, as amended, Section 78-45-9.

Enforcement of right to support (1) The obligee may enforce his right of support against the obligor and the state department of social services may proceed pursuant to this act or any other applicable statute, either on its own behalf or on the behalf of the obligee, to enforce the obligee's right of support against the obligor. Whenever any court action is commenced by the state department of social services to enforce payment of the obligor's support obligation, it shall be the duty of the attorney general or the county attorney, of the county of residence of the obligee, to represent that department.

UNITED STATES CODE (U.S.C.):

U.S.C. 1396-13969, Sub Chapter XIX, Chapter 7,
Title 42.

Summary Judgment--811. Generally: District court may use summary judgment in reviewing decision of Secretary on disability claim.

828. Plaintiff could not be granted summary judgment, in action for social security and disability benefits, since, because of favorable ruling for plaintiff on divorce question, under which it was held that Florida divorce obtained by wage earner from plaintiff was invalid for social security purposes, no consideration was given to question of whether plaintiff satisfied requirements of this section concerning her own primary insurance benefits, and where no determination had been made of the amount of any benefits.

UTAH CONSTITUTION:

Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 1:

All men have the inherent and inalienable right to enjoy and defend their lives and liberties; to acquire, possess and protect property; to worship according to the dictates of their consciences; to assemble peaceably, protest against wrongs, and petition for redress of grievances; to communicate freely their thoughts and opinions, being responsible for the abuse of that right.

Section 3:

The State of Utah is an inseparable part of the Federal Union, and the Constitution of the United States is the supreme law of the land.

Section 4:

The right of conscience shall never be infringed. The State shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion or prohibiting the free exercise thereof; no religious test shall be required as a qualification for any office of public trust or for any vote at any election; nor shall any person be incompetent as a witness or juror on account of religious belief or the absence thereof. There shall be no union of Church and State, nor shall any church dominate the State or interfere with its functions. No public money or property shall be appropriated for or applied to any religious worship, exercise or instruction, or for the support of any ecclesiastical establishment. No property qualification shall be required of any person to vote, or hold office, except as provided in this Constitution.

Section 7:

No person shall be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law.

Section 10:

In capital cases the right of trial by jury shall remain inviolate. In courts of general jurisdiction, except in capital cases, a jury shall consist of eight jurors. In courts of inferior jurisdiction a jury shall consist of four jurors. In criminal cases the verdict shall be unanimous. In civil cases three-fourths of the jurors may find a verdict. A jury in civil cases shall be waived unless demanded.

Section 11:

All courts shall be open, and every person, for an injury done to him in his person, property or reputation, shall have a remedy by due course of law, which shall be administered without denial or unnecessary delay; and no person shall be barred from prosecuting or defending before any tribunal in this State, by himself or counsel, any civil cause to which he is a party.

Section 14:

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers and effects against unreasonable searches and seizures shall not be violated; and no warrant shall issue but upon probable cause supported by oath or affirmation, particularly describing the place to be searched and the person or thing to be seized.

Section 15:

No law shall be passed to abridge or restrain the freedom of speech or of the press. In all criminal prosecutions for libel the truth may be given in evidence to the jury; and if it shall

appear to the jury that the matter charged as libelous is true, and was published with good motives, and for justifiable ends, the party shall be acquitted; and the jury shall have the right to determine the law and the fact.

Section 27:

Frequent recurrence to fundamental principles is essential to the security of individual rights and the perpetuity of free government.

Utah Constitution, Article 4, Section 10: (Oath of office)

All officers made elective or appointive by this Constitution or by the laws made in pursuance thereof, before entering upon the duties of their respective offices, shall take and subscribe the following oath or affirmation; "I do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support, obey and defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of this State, and that I will discharge the duties of my office with fidelity.["]

Article 5, Section 1:

The powers of the government of the State of Utah shall be divided into three distinct departments, the Legislative, the Executive, and the Judicial; and no person charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these departments, shall exercise any functions appertaining to either of the others, except in the cases herein expressly directed or permitted.

Article 8, Section 13:

Except by consent of all the parties, no judge of the supreme or inferior courts shall preside in the trial of any cause where either of the parties shall be connected with him by affinity or consanguinity within the degree of first cousin, or in which he may have been of counsel, or in the trial which he may have presided in any inferior court.

Article 8, Section 19:

There shall be but one form of civil action, and law and equity may be administered in the same action.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case

This is a divorce action based on alleged cruelty to Plaintiff as a first cause of action and on allegations by the State of Utah by and through Utah Department of Social Services, hereinafter referred to as the Department, that the Defendant is an obligor as defined in Utah Statutes as a second cause of action.

Defendant has Counterclaimed with multiple actions arising out of the divorce action, alleging Want of Jurisdiction over subject matter and over his Person due to State citizenship (de jure) status based upon the Preamble and the Bill of Rights to the U.S. Constitution, Want of Jurisdiction over the subject matter based upon a prior Mexican divorce decree being valid, Non-Obligor status as defined by Utah Statutes, the original Utah State marriage having been rescinded based on constructive and actual fraud, Want of Jurisdiction over subject matter and Defendant's Person due to marriage rescission, violation of Constitutional rights, namely, right to trial by jury, right to counsel of choice, notification of rights sua sponte, right to due process, right to freedom of religion and speech, and other Constitutional rights violations causing harm and suffering to Defendant's Person involving conspiracy and alienation of the affections of Defendant's children from him, loss of health, loss of money, loss of time from work, and physical and mental suffering, through illegal activity of Co-Plaintiffs, involving invasion of privacy, conspiracy, fraud, blackmail, malicious

process, malicious prosecution, and failure of the County Attorney, who is a party to the action, to act upon a criminal complaint of assault and battery and a threat to Defendant's life by the use of firearms.

Course of the Proceedings

Co-Plaintiff, Laura McGillivray, separated from Defendant, Michael Barker, about 18 April 1984 and lived in Portland, Oregon. Defendant obtained a Mexican divorce 3 August 1984. Co-Plaintiff returned to Utah to sign the divorce decree on 30 September 1984, and to live in a home in Mayfield, Utah and to receive child support that Defendant provided for his children. Defendant relocated in November 1984 to St. George, Utah. Property settlement and visitation rights of parties were mutually agreed upon during that time as stipulated in the foreign divorce decree. A written contract pertaining to child custody was signed by both parties on 16 June 1985. Defendant was served with a Utah divorce Summons 2 January 1986.

Co-Plaintiff applied for Welfare on 2 January 1985. The Utah Department of Social Services obtained wage information from Defendant's employer in January 1985 after having been notified by Defendant that his children were being provided for in an amount greater than that required by the Department. The Department proceeded to threaten and hassle Defendant and have not stopped for over two years.

Defendant rescinded his marriage license with the State of Utah based on constructive and actual fraud. Attorneys for the State and Utah Legal Services, Inc., held Defendant's children ransom for two years in an attempt to obtain quickly, a new Utah

divorce.

While Co-Plaintiff was helping Defendant move some of his belongings stored in the Mayfield home on 16 June 1985 she, without provocation assaulted Defendant by beating him repeatedly with a short two by four board, and repeatedly threatened to kill him if she had a gun. Defendant reported, more than once, to the SanPete County Sheriff's Office, a Criminal Assault complaint which the SanPete County Attorney refused to act upon until Defendant reported the complaint via certified mail. The matter was submitted to the Attorney General, since The SanPete County Attorney, Ross C. Blackham, was representing the Department in the divorce action. The Attorney General never acted upon said complaint and Defendant feels sure that his life is still in danger.

Mr. Barker was forced over his objection and against his will, under threat, duress, and coercion to proceed in new divorce proceedings because his right to be with his children, as contracted with his former wife, had been violated by Co-Plaintiffs.

Disposition of the Case in Lower Court

The case was tried to the court on 25 March 1987. From the findings and order for the Plaintiff, Defendant appeals.

Statement of the facts (No Court Record)

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