1987

Laura Beth Barker, State of Utah v. Michael Robert Barker : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

POINT I. Michael Barker's argument that the District Court did not have jurisdiction over him because he is a "free white male citizen de jure" has no merit.

POINT II. The District Court's jurisdiction over the parties' divorce was not affected by Michael Barker's Mexican divorce decree. The divorce was obtained through the mail. Neither party had ever been to Mexico during their marriage. Laura Barker was never served with notice of the action. The Mexican decree was therefore void and was not validated by Laura Barker signing her name to it after it was entered by the Mexican Court.

POINT III. The various persons not named in the Amended Complaint but named in Michael Barker's Counterclaim were never properly joined. Furthermore, they could not have been joined in a divorce action where Michael Barker's complaints against them were "tort-like." It was therefore proper for the court to have dismissed the Counterclaim against them.

POINT IV. Michael Barker's derogatory statements about Laura Barker are not protected under either the free speech or freedom of religion clauses of the Utah Constitution. Freedom of speech

is not absolute and there is not a freedom of religion right to teach a child so called "morality" by making derogatory statements about the child's mother.

POINT V. Michael Barker's assertion that the Court adjudicated upon the property rights of a person not a party in the case are absolutely without merit. The Court specifically refused to make any determination as to Gordon Beh's interest in the parties' real property.

POINT VI. The Court considered Michael Barker's contributions to the parties' real property. The Court also considered Laura Barker's and Michael Barker's financial circumstances. The Court properly awarded Laura Barker all right, title and interest to the property.

POINT VII. Michael Barker had very little interaction with his children during the marriage. Laura Barker was the primary caretaker. It was in the children's best interest for Laura Barker to be awarded the care, custody, and control of the parties' children.

POINT VIII. In setting visitation, the primary criteria to be considered is the best interest of the children, not hardship to the non-custodial parent. Michael Barker had little interaction with his children during the parties' 12 year marriage and demonstrated no ability to care for them over long periods of

time. Summer long visitation was not in the children's best interest. However, shorter weekend and week long visitation was appropriate.

POINT IX. Given the parties relative financial circumstances, Laura Barker's ongoing monthly expenses and the reduction of welfare benefits in one year at the time their oldest child turns 18, it was equitable for the Court to increase the overall child support by \$100 at the time the parties' oldest child reaches 18.

POINT X. Michael Barker's remaining arguments are either so void of merit that they do not warrant response or are better argued in the State Respondent's brief.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

FREE WHITE MALES ARE ALSO SUBJECT
TO THE COURT'S JURISDICTION

Michael Barker has made numerous motions to the District Court, argued at trial, made motions to the Court of Appeals, argues as an issue in his brief and raised the argument over and over again that he has some kind of special status as a "free white male de jure" such that the District Court could not exercise jurisdiction over him. This argument is totally void of any merit. Michael Barker's arguments are similar to those

raised in City of Salina v. Wisden, 737 P.2d 981 (Utah 1987) In Wisden the Utah Supreme Court held that the "free man" argument did not prevent a Utah Justice of the Peace Court from properly exercising jurisdiction. Michael Barker's belief that he is a "free white male de jure" in no way prevents the District Court from having jurisdiction over him.

POINT II

THE MEXICAN DIVORCE DECREE IS VOID

Michael Barker argues that a Mexican Divorce Decree that he obtained prevents the District Court from entering a Utah Decree of Divorce.

State Courts will not ordinarily recognize a divorce obtained in a foreign country, if neither spouse had a domicile in that country. Wells v. Wells, 230 Ala. 430, 161 So. 794 (1935), De Young v. De Young, 27 Cal. 2d 521, 165 P.2d 457 (1946) In Wells the Court found that the husband, who had no intention of residing in Mexico, made a trip there for the sole purpose of obtaining a divorce. The Court held that no valid divorce could be granted on constructive service by a nation in which neither party is domiciled.

This is applicable in the instant case. Neither party has ever resided in Mexico. Neither party even went to Mexico during the marriage. The Mexican divorce was a "mail order"

divorce.

California Courts have held Mexican mail order divorces invalid, based upon a lack of jurisdiction. Ryder v. Ryder, 2 Cal. App. 2d 426, 37 P.2d 1069 (1934) Du Quesnay v. Henderson, 24 Cal. App. 2d 11, 74 P.2d 294 (1937), and Rudnick v. Rudnick, 131 Cal. App. 2d 227, 280 P.2d 96 (1955) Other states have ruled similarly. Bergeron v. Bergeron, 287 Mass 524, 192 NE 86 (1934), Re Petition of Chong Jah Alix, 252 F. Supp 313 (DC Hawaii 1965), and Greenspan v. Greenspan, 19 NJ Misc. 153, 18 A.2d 283 (1941) A new Jersey Court held mail order divorces lack "even colorable validity" and are utterly void. State v. Najjar, 1 N.J. Super. 208, 63 A.2d 807, aff'd per curiam 2 N.J. 208, 66 A.2d 37 (1949) Najjar affirmed a conviction for bigamy holding that the Mexican mail order decree had no validity and could not be used as a defense to bigamy.

Mexico lacked subject matter jurisdiction since the Barker's marriage did not occur in Mexico, nor did the parties even travel to Mexico during their marriage.

Mexico also lacked personal jurisdiction since neither party ever lived in Mexico, established any kind of residency in Mexico, nor traveled to Mexico during the marriage and Laura Barker was never served or made aware of the proceedings until after they were final.

Michael Barker has argued in his brief that Laura Barker signed some form of a document that resulted in her submitting herself to the jurisdiction of the Mexican court. The document was not submitted into evidence. Michael Barker testified and indicated in his questions to Laura Barker at trial that he felt she had signed a divorce decree. Laura Barker testified that she had understood that the document she signed was a consent of some kind. She also testified that she signed the document on September 30, 1984, the day she returned from Oregon after the parties six month separation. She testified that she signed the document at Michael Barker's request and understood that he wanted to obtain a divorce only for purposes of his dealings with the Internal Revenue Service. She testified that the parties were reconciling and she signed the document so as not to cause problems with the reconciliation. However, at the time she signed it she did not think they were being divorced and in fact they continued to live together as man and wife until they separated on December 25, 1984. (TR pg. 102 ln. 11 to pg. 104 ln. 15, pg. 113 ln. 18 to pg. 114 ln. 6)

While not in evidence, copies of the Mexican divorce decree in Spanish and English are being attached in the addendum. If, for some reason, the Court should find it necessary to remand this issue for further fact finding, Laura Barker proffers that

these documents will be found to be the Mexican divorce decree in question. As can be seen from the face of the English translation of the divorce decree, Laura Barker did sign that document on September 30, 1984. The documents indicate that the divorce had been granted on August 3, 1984, on the supposed default of Laura Barker. Her signature to a divorce decree could in no way validate a decree already void for lack of subject matter and personal jurisdiction.

POINT III

MICHAEL BARKER'S TORT-LIKE CLAIMS
WERE PROPERLY DISMISSED

Michael Barker argues that the District Court acted improperly in dismissing the non-parties (David L. Wilkerson, Utah Attorney General, Ross C. Blackham, Sanpete County Attorney, John Abbott, Roleen Olsen, The Utah Office of Recovery Services, Utah Legal Services, Inc., Wayne Riches, Clella Lawrence, and the Honorable Howard Maetani (hereafter called non-parties)).

However, Michael Barker did not make any motion whatsoever to join the non-parties. Furthermore, even had Michael Barker attempted to join the non-parties, the court had only limited statutory jurisdiction in the divorce action under Utah Code Ann. 30-3-1 et. seq., 78-45-1 et. seq. and 78-45d-1 et seq. and

could not have joined the non-parties to defend against "tort-like" allegations and complaints. The Utah Supreme Court in Lord v. Shaw, 665 P.2d 1288 (Utah 1983) found that a divorce action is highly equitable without a right to trial by jury and tort actions are at law and may well involve a request for trial by jury. The Court held that: "The administration of justice will be better served by keeping the two proceedings separate." Id. at 1291.

POINT IV

DEROGATORY REMARKS ARE NEITHER MORAL NOR PROTECTED
BY THE UTAH CONSTITUTION

Michael Barker argues that the Court's order that he not make derogatory statements about Laura Barker in front of the children somehow violates his right to free speech and religious freedom under the Utah Constitution. He is unable to cite any authority whatsoever in support of his argument.

As stated in his brief, Michael Barker seeks to teach his children certain "moral" values through making derogatory statements about Laura Barker. This is at best a strange and twisted concept for teaching morality. To allow Michael Barker to say things to his children that denigrate Laura Barker results in the children being used as tools in an irrational battle where the only possible real goal is to hurt Laura

Barker. In reality, however, it is much more likely that such action will result in harm to Michael Barker's children.

Freedom of speech is not absolute. For example, minors are protected from harmful speech through such laws as Utah Code Ann. 78-10-1201 et. seq. (See e.g. State v. Burke, 675 P.2d 1198 (Utah 1983) upholding the constitutionality of the statute.) Article I Section 15 of the Utah Constitution does not sanction or allow Michael Barker to inflict harm on his own children through derogatory remarks about their mother. It was proper for the Court to prohibit such remarks.

Michael Barker can point to no protected religious right to teach a child so called morality by denegrating that child's mother. Article I Section 4 of the Utah Constitution does not allow this.

POINT V

THE COURT DID NOT ADJUDICATE PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A NON-PARTY

Michael Barker argues that the District Court adjudicated upon the property rights of a person not a party in the case. He does not indicate whose property rights he feels were adjudicated.

In its findings and order concerning the parties' real property the Court awarded Laura Barker "all of the parties'

right, title and interest" in the property. (TR pg. 211 ln. 24-25) The property had earlier been quitclaimed by the parties to Gordon Beh, not a party to the divorce. With reference to any rights Gordon Beh might have in the property the Court stated:

I am awarding the Plaintiff the parties' home and she will assume any debt obligation on that. Of course, she has got to get it first, and that's between her and Mr. Beh at this point. That's not before me and I won't rule on Mr. Beh's rights because I don't know if he has any rights.

(TR pg.219 ln.1-5)

As can be seen, the Court specifically did not make a ruling as to Gordon Beh's rights in the property. Michael Barker's assertions that the Court did do so are frivolous.

POINT VI

THE REAL PROPERTY AWARD WAS PROPER

Michael Barker argues that in awarding Laura Barker the parties' home, the Court did not consider the \$5000 from the sale of a home that he owned prior to the marriage. The \$5,000 was used as down payment on the parties' home in Mayfield, Utah. However, the Court was fully aware of the \$5,000. (See TR pg. 58 ln. 25 to pg. 59 ln. 4 Laura Barker testifying: "Q Was there a down payment on that? A \$5,000. Q Where did that money come from? A From a down payment from a home that he had in Portland, Oregon.") (And see TR pg. 116 ln.10-13 "THE COURT: But in answer to your question, I can answer your question because

she already testified that you got a down payment from a house you owned in Oregon. See, I understand that now. That's why I have been listening.)

It is unclear what issue Michael Barker is trying to raise with regards to the home. While, as stated above, he argues that the Court did not consider the proceeds from his property in Oregon, in his brief under paragraph 6 page 36 he asks that "the Court order Respondant/Plaintiff to live in the Mayfield home as per the parties mutual agreement pursuant to the foreign divorce decree." Under Point 20 on page 32 he indicates that he made the home available to Laura Barker and their children and Laura Barker made some kind of a bargain contracting away her rights. However, whatever his contention, the award was within the equity powers of the Court.

In Workman v. Workman, 652 P.2d 931 (Utah 1982) the Utah Supreme Court held that property acquired prior to the marriage by the husband could be considered as marital assets to be divided at the time of divorce. In Jackson v. Jackson, 617 P.2d 338 (Utah 1980) the Court held that the title to marital property prior to the parties' divorce was not binding on the trial Court's distribution. These cases are both cited in Newmeyer v. Newmeyer, 69 Utah Adv. Rep. 32 (Filed November 13, 1987) where the court held that "the overriding consideration

is that the ultimate division be equitable--that property be fairly divided between the parties, given their contributions during the marriage and their circumstances at the time of the divorce." Id. at 33. (emphasis added) At Michael Barker's insistence, Laura Barker did not work outside of the home during the marriage and therefore did not contribute actual money towards the house payments. Nevertheless, as a traditional housewife she did make an equal contribution toward the marriage.

More importantly, the parties' circumstances at the time of the divorce were so different, that the award of the home to Laura Barker was proper as a means of resolving some of the difference. Michael Barker has the greater earning capacity between the parties. His gross income is \$1,500 a month. Even with a child support order of \$500 a month he is left with \$1,000 for one person. Laura Barker is on welfare and has a total income of \$706, if food stamps are included as income. She is only able to earn \$40 a month at her employment, which is part of the welfare grant. She is supporting a family of six on that income, including herself and the parties' five children. Michael Barker is not paying any alimony to Laura Barker.

The Court specifically found that "in view of the number of children involved and the lack of earning power of the Plaintiff that all of the parties' interest in that home should be awarded

to her so that the children will have a place to live." (TR pg.212 ln.11-15) The Court's decision was proper and well within its equitable powers.

POINT VII

THE CUSTODY AWARD WAS PROPER

Michael Barker argues that the award of custody of the children to Laura Barker was an abuse of discretion.

In making a custody award the court must be concerned with the best interest of the children. Hutchison v. Hutchison, 649 P.2d 38, 41 (Utah 1982) The Hutchison Court set out some of the criteria to be used in determining best interest. In Pusey v. Pusey, 40 Utah Adv. Rep. 3 (Filed August 18, 1986) the Utah Supreme Court further clarified the criteria, listing several factors for determining child custody, the most important of which was the identity of the primary caretaker parent during the marriage.

The evidence at trial was that Laura Barker was the primary caretaker of the children throughout the marriage. She fed, bathed, clothed, entertained, took care of when ill and did all of the other responsibilities for the children that a primary caretaker does. Michael Barker's interaction with the children was minimal at best, interacting with them only once a week. In addition, the children have lived with Laura Barker since their

birth, including during both of the parties' separation periods. Currently, Laura Barker has the greater amount of time to spend with the children. Under the criteria set out in Hutchison and Pusey it was proper for the Court to award her custody.

POINT VIII

THE VISITATION ORDER WAS PROPER

Michael Barker argues that the Court's order of only two weeks visitation in the summer and every other weekend was too restrictive. He argues that the Court should consider his financial situation and the distance he has to travel for visitation and allow him to have the children throughout their entire summer break.

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